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6 vi.

FIRST GENERATION

gift to her child, Verlinda Roper, which both she and Thomas
Sprigg signed. Two days later, on Mar. 3, Kathryne added a note
to the above deed, in which she mentioned that, in making the
deed, she had the "approbacion of my nowe husband, Mr. Thomas
Sprigge”. This note was signed by both. (Ibid, #4, 1651-54, pp.
142 andld).

Thomas Sprigg and Katherine, her daughter Verlinda, and
their son Nathaniel moved to MD in 1656 or 1657. (Liber 2, ff
309-10, Land Office, Annapolis.)

Kathryne may have had another child or children who died
young by her first marriage of 13 years, including a William

Roper.
FOR THE CONTINUATION OF THIS LINE SEE THE THOMAS SPRIGG

FAMILY
Francis Graves.
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2. John® Graves (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)”. Born, before 1605, in Dublin,
Ireland. Died, Apr 1640 (2), in Elizabeth City, Co., VA.

He was born not later than 1616, and is believed to be the oldest son. He
was in Accawmack Co., VA. when awarded 100# tobacco in a law suit Feb. 19,
1634/5 vs. John Parrowmore (Ames, op. cit. p. 27). Aug. 9, 1637 he patented 600
ac. £liz. City Co. Neare unto the upper end of the back river adjacent to York
Co. by right of descent from his father Thomas Graves whoe trans. at his own
costs: himselfe, Katherine Graves, his wife, John Graves the patentee & Thomas
Graves, Junr & 8 persons (Nugent, op. cit., p. 62; VA Patent Book 1, Part I, p.
443 per "Cavaliers” p. 62). This land was sold to Richd. Grigson (VA Pat. Bk. 5
per "Cavaliers” p. 527). May 15, 1638 Assigned by John Trussell 200 ac. E. C.
Co.(lbid, p. 88). 15 May 1638 John Graves 200 acs. Eliz. City Co., Neare the
back river, Ny upon land of sd Graves. Due by assignment from John Trussell
(VA Pat. Book 1 Part 1, p. 556 per "Cavaliers" p. 88). May 29, 1639, 150 ac.
granted for trans. of 3 persons. (Ibid, p. 110)(Doliante, op. cit. p. 319-20).
On 15 May 1638 and 29 May 1639 he added two patents of some 350 acres. He was
dead by 30 April 1640. (Jester "Adventurers" p. 327). The name of his wife is
unknown.

He married an unknown woman. Children:

. Ralph® Graves®.
ii. William Graves®.
William Graves claimed 80 ac Yorke Co., 3 Oct. 1655, bd W
with a swamp dividing this land from that of Tho. Pemnchermanm
N by Tand of Wn. Gantlet, E. upon Skimenoe & S upon his own
Tand., Trans of 2 persons: Bryan Coxon and E1lis Wheattley (VA
Pat. Book 4 p, 12 [19] per "Cavaliers" p. 325)
iii. Thomas Graves®.
iv. Sarah Graves®. She married® Thomas Dipnall®, before 1661 (?),
in James City Co., VA.
Her husband was a Burgess from James City County, VA.
v. Unknown daughter Graves®.

3. Thomas” Graves Jr. (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)°. Born, circa 1617 (2), in
Ireland. Died, circa 1674 (?), in Glouchester Co., VA,

May 28, 1640, he patented 55 acres land in Abingdon Parish, Glouchester
Co., VA., about a mile from Timberneck Cr. and 240 ac. in swamp between Severn
and Indian Path adj. Christopher Abbott (VA Pat. Bk. 4 p. 212 per Ibid, p.
358). 2 Mar 1657/8 he acquired 300 ac. Westmoreland Co. on SW sd. Match
Choaticke River bd. Jno. Wood, sm. creek div. from Henry Roach. For Transp. of
six persons assigned by Thos. Broughton (VA. PAT. bk 4 P. 86 (125) PER
"Cavaliers” P. 344; Jester, op. cit.,p. 189.). 20 Mar 1657 Thomas Graves, 240
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acs. in a swamp betwixt Seaverne & the Indian Path in Gloster Co. (VA Pat. Bk.
4 p. 67 [530] per "Cavaliers" p. 417). 20 May 1657 Thomas Graves, 55 ac about a
mile from Timber neck Cr., Gloster Co. bd Christ. Abbott (VA Pat. Bk 4 p. 63
[523] per "Cavaliers’ p. 416). 20 Mar 1661/2 he acquired 700 ac. Lancaster Co.
on Corotoman River which he sold 14 May 1662 to John Edwards, chirurgeon.
(Jester "Adventurers" p. 327). 20 Mar. 1657 Thomas 6raves claimed 55 ac. about
a mile beyond the head of Timber Neck Cr., Glocester Co. Beg. at a tree
dividing this and land of Christopher Abbott. Trans. of 2 persons (Va. Patent
Book 4 p. 144 (211) per Nugent "Cavaliers" p. 358).

18 Mar 1667 Lawrence Smith patented land on Severn River Gloster Co., VA
adj. Thomas Graves (PB 6 p. 41; "Cavaliers II," p. 12).

May 6 1674/5. "Governor Berkeley confirmed to Thomas and Jeffrey Graves,
sons of Thomas Graves, dec’d, 440 ac. in Abingdon, Glouchester due them by last
“N and test. of their dec’d father Thomas Graves. (PB 6 p. 548; "Cavaliers

" p. 160).

He married an unknown woman. Children:

i. Thomas® Graves I11'°.
Thomas Graves and Jeffery Graves, sonnes of Thomas
Graves, dec’d., patented 440 ac. Glochester Co., in Abingdon
(Par.?) 6 Mar. 1674/5 adj Robt. Coleman...Jeffrey Graves... Gr.
Road to Tindal1’s Point &c. 200 ac. purch. by Thos. Graves Sr.,
of Dan’1 Clark; 240 ac. granted him 20 Nov. 1661 & the whole
now due the above under the will of their father; &c according
to sd. will at their request & in their presence delivered by
Capt. Laurence Smith and Capt. Robert Beverly (VA PB 6 p. 548;
"Cavaliers 11" p. 160).
ii. Jeffrey Graves'®.
He shared 440 ac. which he and brother Thomas inherited
from their father in 1674/5 (VA PB 6 p. 548; "Cavaliers 11" p.
160).
William Graves'®. Thomas Graves Jr. may have had a son William
(Jester "Adventurers" p. 327).

4. Verlinda® Graves (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)*'. Born, before 1620, in Ireland.
Died, circa 1675 (?), in Charles Co., MD.

Some writers have believed that it was Verlinda Cotton who married
Governor Stone of Maryland, but in a signed addendum in his book on "The Stones
of Poynton Manor” he states "Since publication the long accepted belief that
the wife of Governor Ston was Verlinds Cotton has been disproved and she is now
placed as Verlinda Graves.”

Her husband settled in Accomac County in VA until appointed Third
Proprietary Governor of Maryland, because, "although a member of the
established church, he had many nonconformist connections and sympathies. He
then took up residence in Maryland. He received a warrant 19 Oct 1653 for
"Poynton Manor” in western Charles County, wher he is believed to be buried.
(Newnan "Stones” p. 8) Maryland by Lord Baltimore. Upon her husband’s death,
his will dated 21 Dec. 1660 and proven in Charles County, Verlinda was devised
the town house and land at St. Mary’s, bur she was to remain at the plantation
at Nanjemoy during her widowhood. (Newman "Stones" p. 8-9 See for further
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information on this family and their descendants).

She married Gov./Capt. William Stone'®, before 1635 (2?), in VA. Born,
1603, in Lancastershire, England. Died, 1660, in Charles Co., MD.

One of the most noteworthy men of his day. Served as a Justice for
Accawamacke Co., VA, a member of Hungar’s Parish, and first Protestant Governor
of Maryland in 1648, when Lord Baltimore replaced Thomas Greene. He served as
Governor until late in 1652 ( Flowering of the Maryland Palatinate by Newman,
p. 148.) He owned 5,000 ac. in Nanjemoy Hundred, Charles Co., MD called
"Poynton (Nanjemoy) Manor" with priveleges of Court Leet and Court Baron (
Newman, Seigniory in Early Maryland pp. 61, 69).

There is_some uncertainty as to when he was Governor. "MD Geneal.” (MD
Hist. Mag.] vol. 1 p. 483 states "during the Puritan Uprising (1654-1656).
Gerard was appointed one of Governor Stone’s Captains”.

In his will he names wife and children and bro. Matthew, bro.-in-laws
Thomas Sprigg and Francis Doughty. (Wills #1, p. 89, Hall of Records,
Annapolis).

See extensive information on his ancestry in Harry Wright Newman, The
Stones of Poynton Manor. Children:

i. Thomas® Stone®.

ii. Richard Stone®. Died, before 1667, in MD. Bequeathed by his
father 500 ac. "Nangemy Manor." His brother John was made
admisnistrator of his estate 11 June 1667 (MD Test. Proceedings
2 pp. 156-157_per Jester "Adventurers’ p. 329).

iii. Matthew Stone®. Born, 1658. He was bequeathed 500 ac. "Nangemy
Manor". On 29 Jan. 1695/6 he deposed he was aged 38 (Jester
“Adventurers" p. 329).

iv. John Stone®. Granted administration of his brother Richard’s
estate 11 Jun 1667.

7 v. Elizabeth Stone.

vi. Mary Stone®.

vii. Katherine Stone®.

5. Ann” 6raves (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)*>. Born, 1620, in Ireland. Died, Jul
1683, in Charles Co., MD.

Ann was the wife of three successive pastors of Hungar’s Parish in
Northampton Co., VA, of which her father was a vestryman. Her first husband,
the Rev. William Cotton on 10 July 1637 patented 350 acres on Hungar’s Creek,
of which 100 acres was for his own and the personal adventure of his wife Ann
Graves, Eleanor Hill, Richard Hill, Edward Eason, and negroes Samson and
Domingo. (Nugent: "Cavaliers and Pioneers” v. 1 p. 59 and Newnan "The Stones of
Poynton Manor” p. 7). Her second husband proved to be a scoundrel and fled to
England where he was later imprisoned. When her third husband elected to leave
VA for health and professional reasons she elected to remain with her family
and friends, and the Rev. Doughty conveyed 200 acres in Charles Co., MD to
Richard Boughton for her use during her lifetime.

"She moved from thence to Charles Co., MD., where her will, 26 Dec.
1682/18 July 1683 named six of her eight grand children and her deceased son
Samuel Eaton (MD Proprietary Wills 4 p. 210 per Jester "Adventurers® p. 328).
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She married, first, Rev. William Cotton'®, Jul 1637, in Southampton Co.,
VA. Born in Bunbury, Cheshire, England. Died, circa 1640 (?), in Northampton
Co., VA. Occupation: Rector.

The son of Andrew and Joane Cotton of Bunbury Cheshire, and brother of
Virlinda Cotton who m. William Stone and d. 1675,

As Rector at Hungar’s parish, Southampton County, VA, he threatened to
resign 19 Feb 1633/4 unless the church warders collected the tithes due the
church. 10 July 1637 William Cotton, Clerke, patented 350 acres called the old
man’s neck, bet. two maine branches of Hungar’s Creek Ely. into the woods for
his and his wife, Ann Graves, personal adventure as well as others. (VA. Patent
Book No. 1, Part'l, p. 434 per "Cavaliers” p. 59). IHis will, Aug. 1640/ 29 Dec
1646 named Brethren-in-law Capt. William Stone and Capt. William Roper as
Overseers. (Jester "Adventurers’ p. 327; Wise, Md Hist. Magazine v. 16 p. 19
Hiden, "Three Rectors of Hungar’s parish and their wife”, William and Mary
College Quarterly, Second series, v. 19 No. 1, Jan. 1939, p. 34-35). Children:

i. Verlinda® Cotton. Born in Southampton Co., VA. She married'
Thomas Burdett, 1 Sep 1658, in Northampton Co., VA
According to Newman “The Stones of Poynton Manor”, p. 7,
she also married a Richard Broughton and settled in Charles
Co., MD.

She married®, second, Rev. Nathaniel Eaton®, before 1642, in VA. Born
1609, in Great Bunwith, Cheshire, England. Died, 1674, in England

A rogue and a scoundrel, aithough he was the first master of the school
which Tater became Harvard and was the second Rector of Hungar’s Parish,
Northampton, VA, and the second such Rector to marry Ann Graves. He was the
fifth son of Richard Eaton, vicar of Great Bunsworth, Cheshire. He attended
Cambridge 1629-1630 and Leyden 1632, and came to New England in 1637, and was
employed as first master at what became Harvard, where he was discharged the
following year for cruelly beating his usher and his students, after which he
led from his creditors, leaving his wife behind

He married Ann, his second wife, about 1642 when Nathaniel Eaton assigned
to_John Holloway 350 acres by right of his intermarriage with the widow of
William Cotton. He again fled his creditors in 1647, deserting his wife. After
the Restoration, he became Vicar of Bideford, Devonshire, and was later
imprisoned for debt. (Mrs. W. P. Hiden "Three Rectors of Hungar’s Parish and
their Wife", William and Mary College Quarterly Historical Magazine, 2nd
series, V. 19, No. 1, January 1939, pp. 35-37). Children:

ii. Samuel Eaton®. Born, circa 1643, in VA. Died, after 1681, in
MD. Lived at "Eaton’s Delight", Charles County, MD., left will
dated April 168].

iii. Nathaniel Eaton®. Born, after 1644, in VA. Named by Verlinda
Cotton Burdette as her brother in her deed of gift to her
Burdett children 24 June 1668 (Jester "Adventurers” p.
328-329).

She married, third, Rev. Francis Doughty®. Born in Bristol, England. Died
in Charles Co., MD. See an extensive account by Mrs. P. W. Hiden "Three Rectors
of Hungar’s Parish and Their Wife", William and Mary College Historical
Quarterly, 2nd series, Vol. 19 No. 1 Jan. 1939 pp. 38-41).
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When her third Husband felt the need to leave Virginia for health and
professional reasons on 13 Mar 1669/70, stating that he wished to "Transport
myself out of the Colony of Virginia that may prove more favorable to my aged,
infirm & decayed Body”, Ann could not bear to leave Virginia, and he conveyed
to Richard Boughton of Charles Co., MD 200 acres of land for the use of his
wife Anne, to go at her death to Richard Broughton.

6. Francis® Graves (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)*°. Born, circa 1630, in Accawmacke
Co., VA. Died, before 1691 (2), in Rappahannock Co., VA.

6 May 1639 "Received by me Henry Pennington the some of one hundred
pounds of tobacco and a cowe calf for the use of Francis Graves that is in full
satisfaction for a parcell of land Henry Wilson bought that did belong unto
Francis Graves, the cowe calf and tobacco being paid by Alice Wilson, widowe,
and received the twenty eighth day of December 1638." (Order Book 1, p. 140,
Northampton Co., VA per Sweeney "Graves”, p. 389).

"Att a Monthly Cot. holden att Northampton the 28th day of November Anno.
1642...A Certiff gted. unto Fra: Graves Orphant of Capt. Tho: Graves deceased.”
(Sweeney "Graves" pp. 389-90).

He probably spent some time in Glouchester Co. before moving to Essex. It
is believed he also lived in Elizabeth City County where his father and brother
John patented land, but most records there are lost.

Oct. 10, 1672 Francis Graves rec’d a patent for 714 ac. land Rappahannock
Co. on south of the river, part on Gilson’s and part on Hodgkins Creek,
adjoining Mr. Beverley’s corner, for transportation of 15 people. (VA. Land
Office, Richmond, Patent Book 6 p. 443 per Sweeney "Graves". p. 390).

28 Nov. 1678. "Know all men by these presents that whereas I Francis
Graves of Rappa County in Virginia did make a verball promise to my now wife
Jane before marriage to confirme the gift of two heifers and a calfe to her
three children doe therefore hereby (for the Tove and affection I have and
beare unto the said children John and Jane Moguffe and Elizabeth Davenport)
freely give and grant to said John etc...."(Record Book 1677-82, Rappahanock
Co., VA per Sweeney "Graves” p. 390-1).

20 Apr_1682 Thomas Blanton patented land adj. Thomas Graves Rappahannock
Co., VA (PB 7 p. 163; "Cavaliers" p. 238).

Francis Sr. was deceased by Aug. 5, 1691 when his widow had remarried and
her new huband, John Doughty, executed a deed of gift to his children, giving
them each a cow. (D & W Book 6, p. 296 per Sweeney "Graves" p. 392).

He married Jane McGuffey or Davenport'”, before 1678 (?), in Rappahannock
Co., VA. Children:

Francis® Graves Jr.'®. Born in Rappahannock Co., VA.
Richard Graves'®. Born in Rappahannock Co., VA. Died, before
1691 (2), in Craven Co., NC. On 19 Sept. 1714 Richard Graves
was 1iving outside of Essex Co., VA.(OB 1708-14 pp. 608-9 per
Sweeney "Graves” p. 391). Moving to Craven Co., NC, he was
variously a Justivce of the General Court, Representative from
the Craven Precinct, Treasurer of same.

His will, probated at September Court 1730, and written
11 Apr 1730 names wife Hannah, Dau. Mary Graves, son Thomas,
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son-in-law Farnifold Green, James Green, nephews Richard and
Thomas Graves "sons of my brother Thomas Graves" in VA.
(Swenney, Ibid, 'p. 391).

Thomas Graves'®. Born in Rappahannock Co., VA. Died, circa
1742, in Rappahannock Co., VA.

Feb. 15, 1742/3 Administration of the estate of Thomas
Graves, dec’d was granted to John Graves, Thomas Coleman
security. William Upshaw, John Garnett, James and William
Reynolds, or any three of them, named appraisers. (WB 6 p.
418). Appraisal recorded 15 Mar 1742/3 (Ibid, p. 425). Final
settlement 16 July 1745, with payments to Richard and Francis
Graves, presumably his brothers.(W8 7 p. 344 Rappa. Co., VA.
per Sweeney "Graves" p. 391).
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7. Elizabeth® Stone'®. Died, 1675.

She survived her husband who drowned in 1683. He was a nephew of Lord
Baltimore, and she the daughter of Governor William Stone. ("MD Geneal." v. 1
p. 145).

She married®® Col. William Calvert®. Born, 1643. Died, 1683.

His Uncle was the powerful Lords Baltimore, proprietors of Maryland.
William Calvert, son of Leonard, son of George, son of Leonard, son of John.
"He came to the Province in 1661, received a large grant of land from his
uncle, Cecil (Calvert), Lord Baltimore, and inherited certain property of his
father including "Governor’s Fields and the mansion at St. Mary’s City. He was
Principal Secretary of MD and a man of high standing. His life was cut short by
drowning when he was trying to ford the swollen Wicomico River in 1682. The
grant of land he received from his uncle, the Lord Proprietory, was called
"Piscataway Manor," 2,400 ac. of which he sold to Charles Egerton, Sr. His home
was "Calvert’s Rest" on Calvert’s Bay, which is still standing. He was a member
of the House of Burgesses and the Council; he was also a Deputy Governor of the
Province.” ( "MD Geneal.” [MD Hist. Mag.] v.I p. 144-5). Children:

Charles® Calvert. Born, 1662, in MD. Died, 1733, in MD.
Elizabeth Calvert.

William Calvert. Born, 1666, in MD. Died, after 1696, in St.
Mary’s Co., MD.

iv. George Calvert. Born, 1668, in MD.

v. Richard Calvert. Born, 1670, in MD. Died, 11 Nov 1718, in MD.
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8.  Elizabeth® Calvert. Born, 1664, in MD. Died, 1684, in MD.

She married”’ Capt. James Neale®”, son of James Neale and Anne Gill,
1681, in MD. Born, 1650 (2), in England. Died, May 1727, in Charles Co., MD.
Resided: 1702, in Wollaston Manor, Charles Co., MD.

He was Lord of Woolaston Manor. See extensive details on his genealogy in
"MD. Genealogies” vol. II, p. 248-265. In 1702 Capt. Neale conveyed to his
daughter Mary, only child of his first wife, Elizabeth Calvert, all the lands
received as her mother’s dowery, indicating that Mary was an only child of that
marriage. On 10 April 1702, James Neale of Charles County, MD, Gent., and
Elizabeth, his wife, conveyed to Charles Egerton, Gent., of St. Mary’s County,
who hath Tately married Mary, daughter of said James Neale, 600 ac. part of a
tract of 3,000 ac. formerly in Charles County but now in P. G. Co., patented to
Wn. Calvert, Esq. and the Sd 600 ac. thereof given in marriage with his dau.
Eliiz. to sd. James Neale (P. G. Co., Lib. A,449 per "Egerton" p. 423).

Will of James Neale, Sr., Wolleston Manor, Charles Co., MD 1 Apr 1725/11
Oct 1727. Eldest son James, Jr. "Woolleston Manor" etc., second son Henry 500
ac. "6ill’s Land" etc., son Benjamin and hrs. 500 ac. leased to and known by
names of Davies, Antho. Smith, Jno. Castles and Tho. Sparks etc, son William
and hrs. 500 ac. leased to etc., to wife Elizabeth and hrs. interest in 340 ac.
Tying at Upper Machetok, VA, lately in poss. of Michael Webb and Benja.
Berryman; 1/3 of personal estate. To daus. Mary Deaton, formerly Vansswearing,
Mary Tawney, formerly Neale, Ann, now wife of Edwrad Cole, and Margaret,
personalty. Exrs. Wisfe and sons William and Benjamin to divide residue
equally. Test: Walter Story, Thos. Taney, Joseph Alvey. Codicil: Son William
and dau. Mildred to have no interest in bequests until they give bond to acquit
themselves and hrs. of all interest in certain slaves once property of dau.
Elizabeth. Date and test. as above. (“MCO" v. 6 p. 39-40) Children:

9 Mary® Neale.

James Neale Jr. Died, 1730, in Charles Co., MD.

After inheriting "Woilestan Manor” from his father in
1727, he was dead by 8 March 1730 when his will, written 7 Jan
1730, was probated. He willed his entire estate to his son
James, reserving half for use of his wife Jane during her life;
if he’was without issue to daus. Jane and Mary and their heirs
To dau. Eliz. and hrs., land in St. Mary’s Co. had with former
wife --2--, her mother, and pers. at age 16 or marriage. Daus.
Jane and Mary Ann, pers. at 16 or marriage. Wife Jane residue
("MCOH" v. 6 p. 181).
iii. Benjamin Neale.
iv. William Neale.

His inheritance from his father was contingent in his
divesting himself of an interest in certain slaves.
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Ann Neale.
Margaret Neale.

Her father named her in his will probated 1727 provided
she acquited herself of an interest in certain slaves.
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9. Mary® Neale”®. Born, 1682, in Prince George Co, VA. Died, before 1707, in
St. Mary’s Co., MD.

Her father named two Mary’s in his will probated in 1727. "To. Daus. Mary
Deaton, formerly Vanswerring, Mary Tawney, formerly Neale.... It is possible
that there was a Mary by each wife.

She was a descendant of the Lords Baltimore. Her father, Capt. James
Neale (1650-1727) married Elizabeth Calvert (d.1684), daughter of William
Calvert and Elizabeth Stone. William was the son of Gov. Leonard Calvert.
(Robert W. Barnes,"Baltimore Co. Families 1659-1759, Baitimore, GPC.) Her
dowery was for 600 acres of land given by her father to her husband-to-be.
After the death of Charles Egerton, she married three more times: Jeremiah
Addington, James Van Swearingen, and William Deacon.

"In 1666 Captain James Neal, an English born subject, then of Charles Co.
petitioned the Assembly for the naturalization of his children stating that he
“hath Tived divers yeares in Spain and Portugal following the trade of
merchandize and his Royal highness the Duke of York in Several Emergent
Affaires as by the commission herewith presented may appeare dureing which tyme
of his abode in those he had four children borne by his lawful wife Anna Neal,
viz; Henrietta Maria James Dorothy and Anthony Neal with which four he hath now
Tiving in the Province of Maryland.’ His ancestry is listed in the Visitation
of Bedforshire.” (Newman "To Maryland from Overseas”, p. 128).

As Mary Egerton admx. of est. of Charles Egerton 5 Mar 1705 with her
father James Neale of Charles Co., and Charles Beckwith of St. Mary’s Co.,
?onl;smen for L.400- stg. (Anmap/ Test. Proc. Lib. 19c p. 40 per "Egerton’ p.
23).

17 May 1708 and 30 Dec 1710 she filed accts estate of Chas. Egerton with
Jeremiah Adderton her then husband (Annap. Inv. & Accts Lib. 28 fol. 221 and
fol. 32-B fol. 11 per "Egerton” p. 423).

"Between 1713 and 9 Sept. 1715, the widow married her third husband, Jos.
Van Swearingen (d. 1721) and about 1722/23 she married fourth William Deacon.
On 8 Mar 1721, as Mary Van Swearingen of St. Mary’s Co., widowm shw dwposed her
age as 39 years.

She married®®, first, Charles Egerton Jr.?®, son of Charles Egerton Sr.
and Anne Porter, before 1702, in St. Mary’s Co., HD. Born, before 1677, in HD.
Died, circa 1705 (?), in Piney Neck, St. Mary’s Co., HD=®

He married Mary Neale, a descendant of the Lords Baltimore. See "Egerton,
p.15-17, and "Baltimore Families" p. 453. Inherited land on Potomac called
"Piney Neck” and 600 ac. "Piscataway" from father 1699.

23 Feb 1702 Charles Egerton of St. Mary’s Co., MD sold 1252 (2) ac., part
of 3,000 ac. granted by Cornelius, Lord Baltimore, to William Calvert loc. on
E. sd of Piscattaway R. and S. sd of crook (illegible copy) (P. G. Co. Jan.
Court, 1703 fol. 75: "PG Co. Land Records” p. 16).

Charles Egerton d. intestate. Mar. 1705. Administrators Bond, estate of
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Charles Egerton late of St. Mary’s Co., dec’d, given by wid. Mary as admx.,
James Neale of Charles Co., and Charles Beckwith of St. Mary’s Co. MD. sureties
for L.400 stg. (Annapolis Test. Proc. Lib. 19c p. 40 Per Egertons” p. 423)
He was not named in his mother’s will of 1712. Children:

10 i. James® Egerton.
ii. Charles Egerton. Died, 1738.

She married, second, Jeremiah Adderton, before 1713, in MD. Died, 1713,
in MD.

She married, third, Joseph Van Swearingen. Died, 1721.

She married, fourth, William Deaton.
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10.  James® Egerton. Born, 1703. Died, 1738, in St. Marys Co., MD.

The will of James Egerton of St. Mary’s Co., was dated 16 Jan 1765 and
proved 26 Jul 1768 (WB TAZI f. 559; Annap. WB 36 p. 531 per "Egertons” p. 424).
He bequeathed to his son Charles Calvert Egerton three negro slaves in addition
to three covered by a deed of gift "when he arrives at eighteen years of age."
Also his dwelling plantation at "Piney Neck" formerly the property of the
Charles Egerton who d. 1699 who had devised it to his son Charles who d. 1705.
James deposed that "Piney Neck" could not be disposed of until son Charles was
21. Charles also received "Bluestone Neck” and residue of estate. Will mentions
grandson Michael Jenifer and granddau. Dorkey Jennifers s/i/1 Michael Jenifer a
young cow and calf, in full of his dec’d wifee Mary Ann’s part of estate.
Richard Swan Evans, friend, to have care of estate till son age 18 but refused
to serve. No wife is mentiond in will. ("Egertons” p. 424).

He married Unknown Woman. Died, before 1768. Children:

i. Charles Calvert’ Egerton. Born, circa 1748. Died, 1778, in St.

Marys Co., MD.

He married a Mary (Bennett?) and had children James,
Calvert, Ann, Sarah and Bennett.

The will of Charles Calvert Egerton of St. Mary’s Co., MD
dated 19 Sept 1777 and proved 5 May 1778 (St. Mary’s Co., WB
JJ#1, p. 58Ff per "Egerton” p. 424).

For the descendants in this line see the "Egerton Family"
p. 424fF.

1 ii. Mary Ann Egerton.
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Mary Ann” Egerton (James, 10). Died, circa 1765.

She married Michael Jenifer. Children:

i. Micheal” Jenifer.
ii. Dorkey Jenifer.

THE GRAVES FAMILY
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Prepared by: Walter Orien Holliman Jr. "Walt"

EIRST GENERATION

1.  Capt. Thomas® Graves Sr.. Born, circa 1575 (?), in Dublin, Ireland.
Died, 1636, in Accawmacke Co., VA. Immigration: Sep 1608, in Jamestown, VA.

Thomas Graves, Gentleman, arrived at the Colony of Jamestown, Virginia
with 70 other venturers on the ship "Mary and Margaret,"” Capt. Newport, master,
in the second supply of Jamestown in Sept. 1608, the colony having been founded
in 1607. (Barbour, "Works of Capt. John Smith" v.1 p.241). On that ship, a
Thomas Forest brought along his wife and her maid, Anne Buras, who soon found a
husband, these being the only white women in the colony until 1621 when the
Virginia Company sent over a supply of unmarried women. (Davis “Jamestown and
her Neighbors" p. 118. Thomas apparently made several trips to Ireland, siring
a child each time. He did not bring his wife and family over until around 1624,
when Thomas Graye et ux, Jone Graye, and William Graye appear on the list of
inhabitants of Jamestown (Hotten "List" p. 173-178).

The Spanish established colonies in the new world by erecting forts,
preparing villages, providing armed soldiers and ships and all the food and
equipment required to establish a colony and raise crops to the point of self
sufficiency. The English had a far simpler way. They loaded a boat with about
60 % Gentlemen, 30 % artisans and craftsmen and 10% laborers, taking care not
to include anyone who had ever planted a seed or grown as much as a pea. They
then provided enough food for a couple of months, gave them a pat on the rear,
and waved from the dock as the adventurers sailed off to a wilderness with no
cleared fields and plenty of hostile indians who came to be more and more
reluctant to share their food supply with the more and more demanding settlers.
By the time the 2nd supply arrived, Capt. John Smith, then President of the
colony, could not understand why they sent starving people 70 more hungry
people and no food. By that time the original 107 settlers had been reduced to
thirty-eight by disease, Indians and Starvation.

"0n one occassion, while on an exploring expedition with Captain John
Smith, he was captured by the Indians and taken to Opechancanough’s Town, where
he was held for ransom. "(Ensign) Thomas Savage (who had been a hostage of the
Indians as a boy, and who had learned the language) was sent by Smith to
recover Graves. In this he was successful. Before securing Graves release,
however, some difficulty arising with the Indians, Savage and three others
offered to fight thirteen of the Indians at once, but the Indians declined the
challenge” (Sweeney, "Graves” p. 385 also Arber, "Capt. John Smith" v. II p.
569). (This would have been before Smith left the colony in 1609 as the result
of a gunpowder accident). Capt. Thomas Graves was named Commander of Smythe’s
Hundred about April 29, 1619 by Governor Yeardley, replacing Capt. Eps who had
killed a man after being overcome with drunkeness. (Records of the London Co.
of VA, 111, p. 121 per Sweeney, 385). It was at about this time that a Dutch
ship brought 20 Negro Slaves, the first in North America.

Thomas Graves was a Representative from Smythe’s hundred, now in Charles
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City Co., to the "First Legislative Assembly held in America®, on July 30,
1619, at’Jamestown.

Capt. Graves was in Accamacke County by 1620. A patent for 200 acres "on
the Easterne side of the Shoare of the Bay of Chesepeacke and abutting
Southerly on the land of Capt. Henry Fleete" was recorded 14 Mar 1628/9 was
issued to "Thomas Graves of Dublin in the Realme of Ireland” on Nov. 20, 1622,
*and was one of several persons who had *...undertaken to transport 100 persons
apiece to Virginia" (Kingsbury, Records of the Virginia Company of London,
1906-1934, vol II, p. 132).

Thomas Graves was also present during the Indian Massacre in 1622 which
took the Tives of 350 people, a third of the settlers.

“Feby. 16, 1623. The Living in Virginia. At the Eastern Shore. Thomas
Graves." (Hotten, 1, 188).

“20 Jan/7 Feby 1624/5 Capt. Tho. Graves His Muster. Capt. Thomas Graves
in the Mary and Margaret 1607. Provision: Corne, 4 barreles. Armes: powder 4
1b., shott, 45 1b; house, 1; Store, 1. (Jester *Adventurers’ p. 69).

Inhabitants of Jamestown in 1624 included Thomas Graye et ux, Jone Graye
and William Graye (Hotten “List" p. 173-178).

The Minutes of the Council and General Court held at James City 8 Feb
1627 reveal that "Captain Thomas Grayes shall haue a commission to Comaund the
Plantation of Accawmacke,” and, further, that he was to be granted 200 acres
for an Adventure of five and twenty pounds, land on the eastern shore (Patent
Book 1, p. 72, Land Register’s Office, Richmond, per Sweeney "Graves" p. 387).

Thomas Graves was again a member of the House of Burgess in 1629/30 and
in 1632 from Accomacke Co. (Stanard "Colonial Register” p. 56, 58). The General
Assenbly appointed Capt. Thomas Graves and others to determine where and when
and how to build a fort at Poynt Comfort 24 Mar 1629/30. (Hening I, 150 per
Sweeney "Graves" p. 388).

29 Feb 1631 Capt. Thomas Grayes assigned 100 ac. Eliz. City Co. due as a
per. divident as being an Ancient Planter (one who had arrived before 1616) to
Capt. Thomas Purifye, Esq. rec.. 28 Nov. 1635 (Nugent "Cavaliers" p. 36).

He was a Member of the Quorum, in Jan. 1632/3 when his name led the Tist
of Commissioners (Justices). He was a Burgess for Accawmacke in 1632. (Sweeney,
"Graves” p. 388).

Thomas Gray was appointed to the vestry of Hungar’s Parish in Sept.

1635. (Doliante, op. cit., p. 315). He was at a meeting of the vestry on 29 Sept
1635 when it was agreed to build a parsonage on the glebe land by "Christyde"
(Sweeney, Graves” p. 388).

"Feb. 9, 1635, Hannah Scarborough, of Acchawmacek, widow, sells to Capt.
Thomas Graves, Esq., one cow and calf” (PB 1 per Nugent "Cavaliers” v. 1 p.62).

Nov. 28, 1635 100 acres of land in Eiz. City Co. were assigned by Thomas
Graves, an ancient planter, to Capt. John West, and from him to Thomas Purifey.
Aug. 9, 1637, his son John Graves patented 600 acres by right of descent from
his father Thomas Graves,*who trans. at his own costs himself, his wife, two
sons, and 8 persons: Katherine Graves, John and Thomas Graves, Jr., Henry
Singieton, Thos. Edge, Robt. Phillipps, Thos. Griggs, Thos. Phillipps, Frances
White, Wm. Symbee, Joane Packett (Patent Book 1, Nugent: “Cavailiers"'v.1 p.
36)

He died in the late autumn or early winter of 1636. (Doliante op. cit. p.
316). He was alive in November 1635 when he witnessed a deed from Ann Harmer to
Robert Chapman of Accaw. Co. (Order Book 1, p. 2, Northampton Co., VA per
Sweeney "Graves” p. 389). His name does not appear as a Justice in January of
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1636, being listed neither present or absent, and probably dead, since on Jan.
5, 1636. Anthony Wills sued Mrs. Graves over one of her servants, John
Culpepper, having killed two of his hogs. She was ordered to pay one sow 1 1/2
years old.

Sweeney concludes that Capt. Thomas Graves lived at the 01d Plantation,
ggg}he shores of Chesapeke Bay, in what is now Northhampton Co., VA. (Ibid, p.
(See Doliante, p. 316 for extensive Bibliography and transcripts of

actual sources).

He married Katherine Unknown Surname” in Ireland. Born, circa 1586 (?),
in Ireland. Died, 20 May 1636, in Accawmacke Co., VA. Children

John” Graves.

Thomas Graves Jr.

Verlinda Graves.

Ann Graves.

Kathryne Graves Roper®. Born, circa 1622 (?), in Ireland. Died,
before 1668 (2), in Calvert Co., MD. She married, first, Capt.
William Roper®, before 1637_(?), in VA. She married®, second,
Thomas Sprigg <Sprigge> Sr.®, circa 1651 (2), in VA.

FOR THE CONTINUATION OF THIS LINE SEE THE SPRIGG FAMILY

She had died by July 4, 1668 when her second husband
remarried (Testamentary Proceedings, Liber 3, f. 12, Hall of
Records, Annapolis). She had married Capt. William Roper by
Aug. 1,°1637 when he claimed 100 acres of land for transporting
his wife and a servant, William Sterlinge. (Ames, op. cit., p.
81).

Jan. 20, 1650/1 Daniel Baker ordered to make payment unto
Mrs. Kathryne Roper ye Relict of Capt. Wm. Roper, dec’d, 1,600
pounds tobacco and cask due her dec’d husband (Northampton'Co.
Deeds,Wills #3 1645-51 p.236a).

Mar. 1, 1650/1 Kathryne (Graves) Roper made a deed of
gift to her child, Verlinda Roper, which both she and Thomas
Sprigg signed. Two days later, on Mar. 3, Kathryne added a note
to the above deed, in which she mentioned that,” in making the
deed, she had the "apprabacion of my nowe husband, Mr. Thomas
Sprigge”. This note was signed by both. (Ibid, #4, 1651-54, pp.
142 and1d).

Thomas Sprigg and Katherine, her daughter Verlinda, and
their son Nathaniel moved to MD in 1656 or 1657. (Liber 2, ff

+ 309-10, Land Office, Annapolis.)

Kathryne may have had another child or children who died
young by her first marriage of 13 years, including a William
Roper.
6 vi. Francis Graves.

awn
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2. John® Graves (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)”. Born, before 1605, in Dublin,
Ireland. Died, Apr 1640 (2), in Elizabeth City, Co., VA.

He was born not later than 1616, and is believed to be the oldest son. He
was in Accawmack Co., VA. when awarded 100# tobacco in a law suit Feb. 19,
1634/5 vs. John Parrowmore (Ames, op. cit. p. 27). Aug. 9, 1637 he patented 600
ac. Eliz. City Co. at the headwaters of the Back River adjacent to York Co. by
right of descent from his father Thomas Graves (Nugent, op. cit., p. 62). May
15, 1638 Assigned by John Trussell 200 ac. E. C. Co.(Ibid, p. 88). May 29,
1639, 150 ac. granted for trans. of 3 persons. (Ibid, p. 110)(Doliante, op.
cit. p. 319-20). On 15 May 1638 and 29 May 1639 he added two patents of some
350 acres. He was dead by 30 April 1640. (Jester "Adventurers® p. 327). The
name of his wife is unknown. His children were Ralph, William, Thomas, Sarah,
who m. by 1661 Thomas Dipnall, Burgess from James City Co., and an unknown
daughter. (Ibid).

He married an unknown woman. Children:

Ralph® Graves®,

William Graves®.

Thomas Eraves®.

Sarah Graves®. She married® Thomas Dipnall®, before 1661 (?),
in James City Co., VA.

v. Unknown daughter Graves®.

3. Thomas® Graves Jr. (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)°. Born, circa 1617 (2), in
Ireland. Died, circa 1674 (2), in Glouchester Co., VA

May 28, 1640, patented land in Abingdon Parish, Glouchester Co., VA 55
ac. about a mile from Timberneck Cr. and 240 ac. in swamp between Severn and
Indian Path adj. Christopher Abbott, and 2 Mar 1657/8 acquired 300 ac.
Westmoreland Co. (Jester, op. cit., p. 189.). 20 Mar 1661/2 he acquired 700 ac.
Lancaster Co. on Corotoman River which he sold 14 May 1662 to John Edwards,
chirurgeon. (Jester "Adventurers” p. 327). 20 Mar. 1657 Thomas Graves claimed
55 ac. about a mile beyond the head of Timber Neck Cr., Glocester Co. Beg. at a
tree dividing this and land of Christopher Abbott. Trans. of 2 persons (Va.
Patent Book 4 p. 144 (211) per Nugent "Cavaliers* p. 358).

May 6 1674/5. "Governor Berkeley confirmed to Thomas and Jeffrey Graves,
sons of Thomas Graves, dec’d, 440 ac. in Abingdon, Glouchester due them by last
will and test. of their dec’d father Thomas Graves. (Ibid).

He married an unknown woman. Children:

i. Thomas® Graves ITI*°.
1. Jeffrey Graves™®.
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iii. William Graves’®. Thomas Graves Jr. may have had a son William
(Jester "Adventurers” p. 327).

4. Verlinda® Graves (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)**. Born, before 1620, in Ireland.
Died, circa 1675 (?), in Charles Co., MD.

Some writers have believed that it was Verlinda Cotton who married
Governor Stone of Maryland, but in a signed addendum in his book on "The Stones
of Poynton Manor" he states "Since publication the long accepted belief that
the wife of Governor Ston was Verlinds Cotton has been disproved and she is now
placed as Verlinda Graves."

Her husband settled in Accomac County in VA until appointed Third
Proprietary Governor of Maryland, because, "although a member of the
established church, he had many nonconformist connections and sympathies. He
then took up residence in Maryland. He received a warrant 19 Oct 1653 for
"Poynton Manor” in western Charles County, wher he is believed to be buried.
(Newnan "Stones” p. 8) Maryland by Lord Baltimore. Upon her husband’s death,
his will dated 21 Dec. 1660 and proven in Charles County, Verlinda was devised
the town house and land at St. Mary’s, bur she was to remain at the plantation
at Nanjemoy during her widowhood. (Newman "Stones” p. 8-9 See for further
information on this family and their descendants).

She married Gov./Capt. William Stone®, before 1635 (?), in VA. Born,
1603, in Lancastershire, England. Died, 1660, in Charles Co., MD.

One of the most noteworthy men of his day. Served as a Justice for
Accawamacke Co., VA, a member of Hungar’s Parish, and first Protestant Governor
of Maryland in 1648, when Lord Baltimore replaced Thomas Greene. He served as
Governor until late in 1652 ( Flowering of the Maryland Palatinate by Newman,
p. 148.) He owned 5,000 ac. in Nanjemoy Hundred, Charles Co., MD called
*Poynton (Nanjemoy) Manor® with priveleges of Court Leet and Court Baron (
Newman, Seigniory in Early Maryland pp. 61, 69).

In his will he names wife and children and bro. Matthew, bro.-in-laws
Thomas Sprigg and Francis Doughty. (Wills £1, p. 89, Hall of Records,
Annapolis).

See extensive information on his ancestry in Harry Wright Newman, The
Stones of Poynton Manor. Children:

Thomas™ Stone®.

Richard Stone®. Died, before 1667, in MD. Bequeathed by his

father 500 ac. "Nangemy Manor." His brother John was made

admisnistrator of his estate 11 June 1667 (MD Test. Proceedings
s 2 pp. 156-157 per Jester "Adventurers® p. 329).

iii. Matthew Stone®. Born, 1658. He was bequeathed 500 ac. "Nangemy
Manor®. On 29 Jan. 1695/6 he deposed he was aged 38 (Jester
“Adventurers” p. 329).

iv. John Stone®. Granted administration of his brother Richard’s

estate 11 Jun 1667.

Elizabeth Stone®.

Mary Stone®.

Katherine Stone®.
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5. Ann” Graves (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)*>. Born, 1620, in Ireland. Died, Jul
1683, in Charles Co., MD.

Ann was the wife of three successive pastors of Hungar’s Parish in
Northampton Co., VA, of which her father was a vestryman. Her first husband,
the Rev. William Cotton on 10 July 1637 patented 350 acres on Hungar’s Creek,
of which 100 acres was for his own and the personal adventure of his wife Ann
Graves, Eleanor Hill, Richard Hill, Edward Eason, and negroes Samson and
Domingo. (Nugent: "Cavaliers and Pioneers® v. 1 p. 59 and Newnan "The Stones of
Poynton Manor® p. 7). Her second husband proved to be a scoundrel and fled to
England where he was later imprisoned. When her third husband elected to leave
VA for health and professional reasons she elected to remain with her family
and friends, and the Rev. Doughty conveyed 200 acres in Charles Co., MD to
Richard Boughton for her use during her lifetime.

"She moved from thence to Charles Co., MD., where her will, 26 Dec.
1682/18 July 1683 named six of her eight grand children and her deceased son
Samuel Eaton (MD Proprietary Wills 4 p. 210 per Jester "Adventurers” p. 328).

She married, first, Rev. William Cotton’*, Jul 1637, in Southampton Co.,
VA. Born in Bunbury, Cheshire, England. Died, circa 1640 (2), in Northampton
Co., VA. Occupation: Rector.

The son of Andrew and Joane Cotton of Bunbury Cheshire, and brother of
Virlinda Cotton who m. William Stone and d. 1675.

As Rector at Hungar’s parish, Southampton County, VA, he threatened to
resign 19 Feb 1633/4 unless the church warders collected the tithes due the
church. 10 July 1637 he patented 350 acres on Hungar’s Creek for his and his
wife, Ann Graves, personal adventure as well as others. His will, Aug. 1640/ 29
Dec 1646 named Brethren-in-law Capt. William Stone and Capt. William Roper as
Overseers. (Jester "Adventurers' p. 327; Wise, Md Hist. Magazine v. 16 p. 191
Hiden, “Three Rectors of Hungar’s parish and their wife”, William and Mary
College Quarterly, Second series, v. 19 No. 1, Jan. 1939, p. 34-35). Children:

i. Verlinda® Cotton, Born in Southampton Co., VA. She married*®
Thomas Burdett, 1 Sep 1658, in Northampton Co., VA.
According to Newnan “The Stones of Poynton Manor”, p. 7,
she also married a Richard Broughton and settled in Charles
Co., HD

She married®, second, Rev. Nathaniel Eaton®, before 1642, in VA. Born,
1609, in Great Bunwith, Cheshire, England. Died, 1674, in England

A'rogue and a scoundrel, although he was the first master of the school
which Tater became Harvard and was the second Rector of Hungar’s Parish,
Northamptony VA, and the second such Rector to marry Ann Graves. He was the
fifth son of Richard Eaton, vicar of Great Bunsworth, Cheshire. He attended
Cambridge 1629-1630 and Leyden 1632, and came to New England in 1637, and was
employed as first master at what became Harvard, where he was discharged the
following year for cruelly beating his usher and his students, after which he
fled from his creditors, leaving his wife behind

He married Ann, his second wife, about 1642 when Nathaniel Eaton assigned
to_John Holloway 350 acres by right of his intermarriage with the widow of
William Cotton. He again fled his creditors in 1647, deserting his wife. After
the Restoration, he became Vicar of Bideford, Devonshire, and was later
imprisoned for debt. (Mrs. W. P. Hiden "Three Rectors of Hungar’s Parish and
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their Wife", William and Mary College Quarterly Historical Magazine, 2nd
series, V. 19, No. 1, January 1939, pp. 35-37). Children:

i1, Samuel Eaton®. Born, circa 1643, in VA. Died, after 1681, in
MD. Lived at "Eaton’s Delight", Charles County, MD., Teft will
dated April 168].

iii. Nathaniel Eaton®. Born, after 1644, in VA. Named by Verlinda
Cotton Burdette as her brother in her deed of gift to her
Burdett children 24 June 1668 (Jester "Adventurers" p.
328-329).

She married, third, Rev. Francis Doughty®. Born in Bristol, England. Died
in Charles Co., MD. See an extensive account by Mrs. P. W. Hiden "Three Rectors
of Hungar’s Parish and Their Wife", William and Mary College Historical
Quarterly, 2nd series, Vol. 19 No.’1 Jan. 1939 pp. 38-41).

When her third Husband felt the need to leave Virginia for health and
professional reasons on 13 Mar 1669/70, stating that he wished to "Transport
myself out of the Colony of Virginia that may prove more favorable to my aged,
infirm & decayed Body", Ann could not bear to leave Virginia, and he conveyed
to Richard Boughton of Charles Co., MD 200 acres of land for the use of his
wife Anne, to go at her death to Richard Broughton.

6. Francis® Graves (Capt. Thomas Sr., 1)*°. Born, circa 1630, in Accawmacke
Co., VA. Died, before 1691 (2), in Rappahannock Co., VA

6 May 1639 "Received by me Henry Pennington the some of one hundred
pounds of tobacco and a cowe calf for the use of Francis Graves that is in full
satisfaction for a parcell of land Henry Wilson bought that did belong unto
Francis Graves, the cowe calf and tobacco being paid by Alice Wilson, widowe,
and received the twenty eighth day of December 1638." (Order Book 1, p. 140,
Northampton Co., VA per Sweeney "Graves”, p. 389).

"Att a Monthly Cot. holden att Northampton the 28th day of November Anno.
1642...A Certiff gted. unto Fra: Graves Orphant of Capt. Tho: Graves deceased.”
(Sweeney "Graves” pp. 389-90).

He probably spent some time in Glouchester Co. before moving to Essex. It
is believed he also lived in Elizabeth City County where his father and brother
John patented land, but most records there are lost.

Oct. 10, 1672 Francis Graves rec’d a patent for 714 ac. land Rappahannock
Co. on south of the river, part on Gilson’s and part on Hodgkins Creek,
adjoining Mr. Beverley’s corner, for transportation of 15 people. (VA. Land
Office, Richmond, Patent Book 6 p. 443 per Sweeney "Graves®. p. 390).

28 Nov. 1678. "Know a1l men by these presents that whereas I Francis
Graves of Rappa County in Virginia did make a verball promise to my now wife
Jane before marriage to confirme the gift of two heifers and a calfe to her
three children doe therefore hereby (for the love and affection I have and
beare unto the said children John and Jane Moguffe and Elizabeth Davenport)
freely give and grant to said John etc...."(Record Book 1677-82, Rappahanock
Co., VA per Sweeney "Graves" p. 390-1).

Francis Sr. was deceased by Aug. 5, 1691 when his widow had remarried and
her new huband, John Doughty, executed a deed of gift to his children, giving
them each a cow. (D & W Book 6, p. 296 per Sweeney "Graves" p. 392).
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He married Jane McGuffey or Davenport®”, before 1678 (2), in Rappahannock
Co., VA. Children:

Francis® Graves Jr.*®. Born in Rappahannock Co., VA.

Richard 6raves*®. Born in Rappahannock Co., VA. Died, before
1691 (2), in Craven Co., NC. On 19 Sept. 1714 Richard Graves
was 1iving outside of Essex Co., VA.(0B 1708-14 pp. 608-9 per
Sweeney “Graves" p. 391). Moving to Craven Co., NC, he was
variously a Justivce of the General Court, Representative from
the Craven Precinct, Treasurer of same.

His will, probated at September Court 1730, and written
11 Apr 1730 names wife Hannah, Dau. Mary Graves, son Thomas,
son-in-law Farnifold Green, James Green, nephews Richard and
Thomas Graves "sons_of my brother Thomas Graves" in VA.
(Swenney, Ibid, p. 391).

Thomas Graves*®. Born in Rappahannock Co., VA. Died, circa
1742, in Rappahannock Co., VA.

Feb. 15, 1742/3 Administration of the estate of Thomas
Graves, dec’d was granted to John Graves, Thomas Coleman
security. William Upshaw, John Garnett, James and William
Reynolds, or any three of them, named appraisers. (WB 6 p.
418). Appraisal recorded 15 Mar 1742/3 (Ibid, p. 425). Final
settiement 16 July 1745, with payments to Richard and Francis
Graves, presumably his brothers.(WB 7 p. 344 Rappa. Co., VA.
per Sweeney "Graves” p. 391).
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FIRST GENERATION

1. Thomas! Gray!. Born, 1593, in England. Died, 1658, in Surry Co
Resided: 1608, in James City Co., VA.

He arrived in America in 1608 at age 15. In Hotten, p. 228, he is listed
in the "Musters of the Inhabitants of Virginia" as "Thomas Graye, Margrett, his
wife, Jone, their daughter aged 6 yeres, William their sonne aged 3 ye .

"In 1635 Thomas Gray patented 550 acres in James City County, VA. 'On the
5. side of the maine river over against James Citty , adj. on the E. to the
plantation now in his posession & to the land of Capt. Perry, running along by
Rolfes Cr. & §. into the woods on the Gross. Cr., 100 acres due as an Ancient
Planter at or before the time of Sir Thomas Dale, 50 acres for the personal
adventures of Anis Gray his first wife, 50 acres for the adventures of Rebecca
Gray his now wife, and 330 acres for the trams. of his two sons, Wm. Gray and
Thos. Gray, and 5 servants: Jon. Bishopp, Robt. Browne, Robt. Welshe, Luke
Misle, Jon, Banckes.'" (VA. Land Office Patent Book 1, p. 263).

“In 1639 Thomas Gray patented 400 acres in James City Co., VA upon the
head of Gray's Creek, for the transportation of 8 persons: Richard Deane,
Francis Fiveash, Allan Sadome, William Short, John Hancock, and three negroes.”

In 1642 he patented 100 acres in James City Co. on the east side of
Gray's Creek, adj. his own land, for the transportation of George Graves and
William Browne. On March 14, 1652, he patented 800 acres in Surry Co., VA. on
south side of James River at the head of Smith's Fort Creek, adj. land of John
Kemp: 400 acres thereof were granted to him July 30, 1639 and he purchased the
other 400 acres from Samuel Abbott (Land Office Book 3, p. 158)

On March 7, 1653, Thomas Gray, St., aged 60 years, deposed that Daniel
Hutton (or Shelton, per "Valentine Papers") did before his departure bequeath
his entire estate to his wife orall. (Surry Co., Deed Book 1, p. 41). (All of
the above from Boddie "Southside II", p. 309-10).

He married? Avis <Anis?> Unknown Surname?, 1618, in VA. Born, circa 1595,
in England.

In the "Musters of the Inhabitants of Virginia 1624/5" the wife of Thomas
Graye was listed as Margrett, (Hotten, p. 228), but in her husbands land
patents she is variously referred to as Avis, Anis, and possibly Amnis. Tt is
possible there was an earlier marriage, or the recorder in "Musters” may simply
have made a mistake. Children:

i. Jame? Gray’. Born, 1619, in VA. She married John Hux.

Named as "Jone Graye"aged 6 years in "Musters of
Tnhabitants in Virginia 1624/5" per Hottens p. 228 per Boddie
“Southside IT" p.309-310.

Capt. William Gray.
Thomas Gray*. Born, 1625, in VA. Died, 1676, in Surry Co., VA.
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Apparently never married. His will dated April 16,1676
and proved May 2, 1676 gave to his brother Francis Gray 3
draughts of hogs, to the wife of Francis Gray his linen
clothes, to his brothers John and William Gray his plantation
and lands, and to his three brothers the remainder of his
estate to be equally divided. Wit: Nath'l Knight, and Jno.
Ironmonger. Francis Gray qualified as Administrator with Thos,
Sorsby and George Foster as sccurities. (Boddie "Southside IT"
p. 310-311).

3 iv. John Gray.
o v. Capt. Francis Gray.
SECOND GENERATION
2. Capt. Willian? Gray (Thomas, 1)3. Born, 1622, in James City Co., VA.

Died, 1714, in Surry Co., VA.

In 1677 William Gray and John Gray, planters of Surry Co., VA, being
joint heirs of Thomas Gray, sold to Col. Thomas Swann 100 acres on Gray's Creek
(DB 12, p. 145 Surry CO., VA). In 1680 Wm. Gray patented 680 acres in Surry
Co.. adj. Richard Briggs, William Edwards, Robert Ruffin, being part of 800 ac.
granted in 1668 to Vm. Harris of Surry, and by him sold to William Gray in
1679. (VA. Land Office Book 7, p. 27). In 1679 Wm. Gray sold to Robt. Kae of
Isle of Wight Co., VA. and Nicholas Wilson of Surry a 99 year lease of a water
mill, made to sd. Gray by Robert Parke and Mary his wife. (DB 12, p. 252, Surry
Co., VA). In 1688 he sold to Charles White 136 ac. parented 1654 by Eliza
Hutton which descended to William as first cousin and heir (DB 3, P. 3). Tn
1689 William Gray sold Robt. Caulfield 680 ac. of which 490 ac. were purch. by
¥m. Harris, son of Thos. Harris, dec'd. and the remainder patented by William
Gray in 1680. Wit: Arthur Allen, Wm. Smith. (DB 3 p.7).

In his will dated Feb. 8, 1710 and recorded Oct. 20, 1714, he gave a cow
to Henry Clark, a cow to Charles Judkins and left the remainder of his estate
to be equally divided between his widow and his son Thomas Gray. Wit: Wm.
Foster, David Andrews. (DB 5, p. 212, Surry Co., VA) (A1l from Boddie
"Southside TT" p. 310).

Tie married Mary Unknown Surname. Children:

i. Lydia® Gray. Born, circa 1645 (?), in James Gity Co., VA®.
Died, before 1679 (?), in Surry Co., VA?. She married, first,
Samuel Judkins Sr.?, circa 1666. She married’, second, Capt.
Thomas Pittman Sr.1%, 10 Sep 1672, in Surry Co., VA.

She died before March 4, 1679.
For the continuation of this line see the JUDKINS FAMILY.

Gilbert Gray!!. Born, circa 1647, in VA. Died, circa 1710.
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John Gray!l. Born, circa 1650, in VA. Died, circa 1708

He left legacies to his sister Lidia and brothers Thomas
and Gilbert, as well as his father, who was his executor.
iv. Thomas Gray.

3. John? Gray (Thomas, 1)*. Born, 1627, in James City Co., VA. Died, 1683,
in Surry Co., VA.

On 2 Nov. 1675, John Gray, Sr., was ordered to pay Wm. Tooke 500 pounds
of tobacco according to the will of Ridley, dec'd. 1671, for the services of
John Gray, Jr., one vear more. (Surry Co., Order Book 1671-90 p. 104). On Nov.
4, 1678 John Gray confessed judgement to Robert Ruffin for 400 pounds tobacco.
(0.B. 1671-90 p. 241). Tn his will dated 16 May 1683, proved July 3, 1683, he
save one-third of his estate to his wife, and the remainder (except house and
Tand) to his daughter with reversion should she die before coming of age or
marrying to the children of his brother William Gray. He named his wife as exr.
and charged his brother William Gray and "cousin” William Gray to see the will
was performed. John Foster and Thomas Bage, Witnesses. (DB 12, p. 330) . Jo hn
oreing, Geo. Foster and Thos. Crews, Appraisers. (0B 1671-90 p. 408). (Bodd
Southside IT" p. 311).

He marcied Mary Unknown Surname. Children:

i. Daughter? Gray*.

4.  Capt. Francis? Gray (Thomas, 1)12. Born, 1630, in James City Co., VA.
Died, 1679, in Surry Co., VA.

"On Nov. 3, 1658 Francis Gray assigned his right in certain land patents
to his brother Thomas. Wit: Jno. Gittings, Sam. Swaime. (Surry Co. DB 1 p.175).
Tn 1662 he was on a special jury panel. (DB 1, p.185). Jan. 26, 1662/3. Francis
Gray deeded John Tatum 100 ac. Chippoakes Creek, Surry Co.,adj. sd. Tatum's
Jand lately purchased from John Rawlings. Wit: Elias Osbourne, Selby Sparrow.
(DB 1, p. 213). Sept. 4, 1666 Francis Gray ack. his deed to his brother Thomas
Gray of the plantation on which Mr. Hely lived and which sd. brother had since
let to ¥r. Dickerson. (DB 1, p.275). In 1673 Francis Gray confessed judgement
Lo Harry Francis for 400 pounds tobacco and caske with costs. (OB 167190,
5.22). In 1674he was sued by Gol. Thomas Swann who won judgement for 2769
pounds tobacco (OB 1671-90 p. 72). In 1675 Francis and Mary Gray sold a parcel
of land in Surry to Thomas Crews, bd. by Thos. Gray, Geo. Foster, and Col.
Thos. Swann, near the mouth of Gray's Creek. Wit: Wm. Thompson, Fra. Sumner (OB
167190, p. 69). May2, 1676 Francis qual. as admin. of estate of his brother
Thomas Gray, dec'd. Thos. Sorsby and Geo. Foster sureties. (OB 1671-90, p.
126). On list of titheables 1677, Surry Co., VA. He made no will. His widow
Mary Gray qual. as Admin. she gave bond of 40,000 pounds of legal tobacco. with
Roger Potter and Geo. Foster sureties. Wit: Thos. Jordan, Wm. Edwards. Recorded
June 25, 1679. (DB 1, p.1)". (Boddie "Southside IT" p. 311-2).

He married Mary Unknown Surname. Children:

i. Margaret® Gray!3. Born, circa 1655, in Surry Co., VA. She
married, first, William Harris. She married, second, Thomas
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Taylor.

Vory Graylt . Born, cirea 1657, in Surry Co., VA. She parried
Edward Moreland.

o Seth Gray!s . Born, circa 1659 (2), in Surry Co., VA. Died,
1767 (?), in Edgecomb Co., NCI¢. She married, first, James
Nicholsonl? . She marriedi®, second, Unknown Andrews, after

170:

Will of Elizabeth (Gray) (Nicholson) Andrews 24 April
1767, recorded in January Court 1768, ("Edgecomb Councy Wills =
1758-1830". C. R. 37.036, p- 14):

In the name of God, Amen — T Elizabeth Andrews of
Pdgocond Co in the Province of North Carolina, being old and
ke in body, but of perfect sens and sound mind and memory,
o eventing any disputs (sic) amongst my Children abour the
o e I'may leave at my Death, do make this my Last Will and
e oment in manner following, that is to say~ INPRINIS =T
give and bequeath to my three Daughters, Elizabeth, Mary, and
&orah all my wearing Cloathes to be equally divided between my
S doughtare, except one Blue and white striped cotton gound
Caic) and one white cotton pettycoat bordered with Callico,
which said gound and petticoat I give to my Grand Daughter,
o Nichoteon. ITEM - T give and Bequeath to my son Benjamin
Nithotson, and %o his Heirs forever (after my just debts and
legacies are paid), all the Remainder of my Estate of what
e or Kind soever or where so ever. ITEM - I nominate,

B ftute and appoint my said son Benjamin Nicholson my Whole
o le Executor of this My last Will and Testament, Revoking
210 Former wills by me made and declaring this only to be mr
Tast Will and Testament - In Witness whereof I have here unto
o hand and affixed my Seal this Twenty fourth Day of April
2o he Year of our Lord one thousand, seven hundred, Sixty
e Elizabeth Andress, her Mark in the presence of Samuel
Sovemy, hie Mark, Pamela Nicholson, her mark, and James Cray.

Zor the Continuation of this line see the NICHOLSON
FAMILY
Capt- William Grayi?. Born, 1661, in Surry Co.. VA. Died, 1719,
oD eeied Flizabeth Unknown Surname, circa 1682, in Surry Co-.
VA.
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5.  Thomas? Gray (Capt. William, 2)11. Born, circa 1652, in VA. Died, circa

1717,
He married Unknown Woman. Children:

Thomast Gray.
Orphaned in 1717, he chose William Foster as guardian.
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Chapter

a5l
The Graves Family

In early Colonial script and typefaces this family name
often appears to be "Grayes" or "Graues". Captain Thomas Graves
was our first known ancestor to come to America, arriving in the
second supply of Jamestown, Virginia, on the ship Mary and
Margaret in September 1608. Early records state that he is from
Dublin in Ireland. It is not known whether he was born there or
went there. He brings some of legend to life as he was captured
by the Indians in the early days of the Colony, and Captain John
Smith, of Pocahantas fame, sent Ensign Thomas Savage and others
to rescue him.

"...We came to the laughing Kings on the Easterne shore who
told us plainly, Namanicus would have allured him (Ensign Thomas
Salvage <Savage>) into his countrie, under color of trade, to cut
his throat. Hee told us also Opechancanough had imployed Onianimo
to kill Salvage; because he brought the trade from him to the
Easterne shore, and some disgrace hee had done his sonne and some
thirteene of his people before one hundred of these Easterlings
[Indians on the eastern shore of Chesapeke Bay] in rescuing
Thomas Graves whom they would have slaine: where he and three
more did challenge the thirteen Pamaunkes to fight, but they
durst not; so that all those Easterlings so derided them, that
they came there no more" (Captain John Smith, Travels and Works
of Captain John Smith, Vol. II, a reprint of The Third Book,
1624, as reprinted Edinburg, Oliver and Bond, nd., p. 569).
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FIRST GENERATION

1. Capt. Thomas' Graves Sr.. Born, circa 1575 (2), in Dublin, Ireland.
Died, 1636, in Accawnacke Co., VA. Immigration: Sep 1608, in Jamestown, VA.

In Sept. 1608, Thomas Graves, Gentleman, arrived at the Colony of
Jamestown, Virginia with 70 other venturers on the ship "Mary and Margaret,"
Capt. Newport, master, in the second supply of Jamestown, the colony having
been founded in 1607. (Barbour, "Works of Capt. John Smith” v.1 p. 241). On
that ship, a Thomas Forest brought along his wife and her maid, Anne Buras, who
soon found a husband, these being the only white women in the colony until 1621
when the Virginia Company sent over a supply of unmarried women. (Davis
“Jamestown and her Neighbors” p. 118). Thomas apparently made several trips to
Ireland, siring a child each time. He did not bring his wife and family over
until around 1624, when Thomas Graye et ux, Jone Graye, and William Graye
appear on the 1ist of inhabitants of Jamestown (Hotten “List" p. 173-178).

Much of the information herein is from William Montgomery Sweeney,
“Captain Thomas Graves and Some of His Descendants’ in Genealogies of Virginia
Eamiles from Tyler’s Quarterly Magazine, v. II, Baltimore, GPC, 1981, p.732.

The Spanish established colonies in the new world by erecting forts,
preparing villages, providing armed soldiers and ships and all the food and
equipment required to establish a colony and raise crops to the point of self
sufficiency. The English had a far simpler way. They loaded a boat with about
60 % Gentlemen, 30 % artisans and craftsmen and 10% laborers, taking care not
to include anyone who had ever planted a seed or grown as much as a pea. They
then provided enough food for a couple of months, gave them a pat on the rear,
and waved from the dock as the adventurers sailed off to a wilderness with no
cleared fields and plenty of hostile indians who came to be more and more
reluctant to share their food supply with the more and more demanding settlers.
By the time the 2nd supply arrived, Capt. John Smith, then President of the
colony, could not understand why they sent starving people 70 more hungry
people and no food. By that time the original 107 settlers had been reduced to
thirty-eight by disease, Indians and Starvation.

"On one occassion, while on an exploring expedition with Captain John
Smith, he was captured by the Indians and taken to Opechancanough’s Town, where
he was held for ransom. (Ensign) Thomas Savage (who had been a hostage of the
Indians as a boy, and who had learned the language) was sent by Smith to
recover Graves. In this he was successful. Before securing Graves release,
however, some difficulty arising with the Indians, Savage and three others
offered to fight thirteen of the Indians at once, but the Indians declined the
challenge" (Sweeney, “Graves" p. 385 also Arber, "Capt. John Smith" v. II p.
569).(This would have been before Smith left the colony in 1609 as the result
of a gunpowder accident). Capt. Thomas Graves was named Commander of Smythe’s
Hundred about April 29, 1619, by Governor Yeardley, replacing Capt. Eps who had
killed a man after being overcome with drunkeness. (Records of the London Co.
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of VA, TII, p. 121 per Sweeney, 385). It was at about this time that a Dutch
ship brought 20 Negro STaves, the first in North America.

Thomas Graves was a Representative from Smythe’s hundred, now in Charles
City Co., to the "First Legislative Assembly held in America”, on July 30,
1619, at Jamestown.

Capt. Graves was in Accamacke County by 1620, and on 20 Nov. 1622 a
patent was awarded "to Thomas Graves of Doublin in the Realme of Ireland, Gent.
A patent for 200 acres "on the Easterne side of the Shoare of the Bay of
Chesepeacke and abutting Southerly on the land of Capt. Henry Fleete” was
recorded 14 Mar 1628/9, "and was one of several persons who had "...undertaken
to transport 100 persons apiece to Virginia" (Kingsbury, Records of the
Virginia Company of London, 1906-1934, vol II, p. 132).

Thomas Graves was also present during the Indian Massacre in 1622 which
took the Tives of 350 people, a third of the settlers.

Muster Rolls of Virginia “Feby. 16, 1623. The Living in Virginia. At the
Eastern Shore. Thomas Graves." (Hotten, 1, 188).

"20 Jan/7 Feby 1624/5 Capt. Tho. Graves His Muster. Capt. Thomas Graves
in the Mary and Margaret 1607. Provision: Corne, 4 barreles. Armes: powder 4
Tb., shott, 45 b; house, 1; Store, 1. (Jester "Adventurers” p. 69).

Inhabitants of Jamestown in 1624 included Thomas Graye et ux, Jone Graye
and William Graye (Hotten "List" p. 173-178).

"A Court held the eight daye of February 1624. Sir Francis Wyatt Knight
Governor &c., Sir George Yardley, Knight Mr. George Sands Threar." 6ilbert
Peppet deposed that Capt. Thomas Graves paid his taxes with good tobacco, but
others paid with trash. (Minutes of the Council and General Court of Colonial
Virginia, p. 46-7; ""VA Families, Tylers” v. II, p. 733).

The Minutes of the Council and General Court held at James City 8 Feb
1627. "It is ordered that Captain Thomas Grayes shall haue a commission to
Comaund the Plantation of Accawmacke.” ("Sweeney "Graves" p. 735).

14 Mar 1628 Thomas Graies, (or Graves), Ancient Planter, 200 acs on the
E. side of the Shore of the bay of Chesepeiacke butting Sy on land of Capt.
Henry Fleete, extendimg Nly. along the water side and Wly. on the bay. Due by
virtue of an adv. of 25 Lbs. paid to Sir Thomas Smith, late Treasurer for the
Co. of Va. (VA Patent Book 1, Part 1 p. 72, Land Register’s Office, Richmond,
VA., per "Cavaliers" p. 13).

Thomas Graves was Commissioner (Justice) for Accomacke 1629, and a member
of the House of Burgess in 1629/30 and in 1632, (Stanard "Colonial Register" p.
56, 58). The General Assembly appointed Capt. Thomas Graves and others to
determine where and when and how to build a fort at Poynt Comfort 24 Mar
1629/30. (Hening I, 150 per Sweeney "Graves" p. 388).

29 Feb 1631 Capt. Thomas Grayes patented 100 ac. Eliz. City Co. due as a
per. divident as being an Ancient Planter (one who had arrived before 1616)
assigned to Capt. Thomas Purifye, Esq. rec. 28 Nov. 1635 (Nugent "Cavaliers" p.
36). This land had escheated to the state by 1663 ("Cavaliers" p. 535).

He was a Member of the Quorum, in Jan. 1632/3 when his name led the list
of Commissioners (Justices). He was a Burgess for Accawmacke in 1632. (Sweeney,
"Graves" p. 388).

Nov. 1631. Col. Wm. Claiborne purchased from Capt. Thomas Graves "2
pounds_powder” for 5 shillings.

Thomas Gray was appointed to the vestry of Hungar’s Parish in Sept. 1635.
(Doliante, op. cit., p. 315). He was at a meeting of the vestry on 29 Sept 1635
when it was agreed to build a parsonage on the glebe land by "Christyde"
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(Sweeney, "Graves,” p. 388).

"Feb. 9, 1635, Hannah Scarborough, of Acchawmacek, widow, sells to Capt.
Thomas Graves, Esq., one cow and calf® (PB 1 per Nugent "Cavaliers” v. 1 p.62).

Nov. 28, 1635 100 acres of land in Eiz. City Co. were assigned by Thomas
Graves, an ancient planter, to Capt. John West, and from him to Thomas Purifey.
Aug. 9, 1637, his son John Graves patented 600 acres by right of descent from
his father Thomas Graves,"who trans. at his own costs himself, his wife, two
sons, and 8 persons: Katherine Graves, John and Thomas Graves, Jr., Henry
Singleton, Thos. Edge, Robt. Phillipps, Thos. Griggs, Thos. Phillipps, Frances
White, Wn. Synbee, Joane Packett (Patent Book 1, Nugent: "Cavailiers” v.1 p.
36)

He died in the late autumn or early winter of 1636. (Doliante op. cit. p.
316). He was alive in November 1635 when he witnessed a deed from Ann Harmer to
Robert Chapman of Accaw. Co. (Order Book 1, p. 2, Northampton Co., VA per
Sweeney "Graves” p. 389). His name does not appear as a Justice in January of
1636, being listed neither present or absent, and probably dead, since on Jan.
5, 1636. Anthony Wills sued Mrs. Graves over ome of her servants, John
Culpepper, having killed two of his hogs. She was ordered to pay one sow 1 1/2
years old.

Sweeney concludes that Capt. Thomas Graves lived at the 01d Plantation,
on the shores of Chesapeke Bay, in what is now Northhampton Co., VA. (Ibid, p.
389)

11 Nov. 1651, a William Parry also claimed land for the transportation of
Thomas Graves, his wife Katherine, John Graves and Thomas Graves, Jr. One might
suspect that Parry was an opportunist. ("Cavaliers” p. 222).

(See Doliante, p. 316 for extensive Bibliography and transcripts of
actual sources).

He married Katherine Unknown Surname® in Ireland. Born, circa 1586 (?),
in Ireland. Died, 20 May 1636, in Accawmacke Co., VA. Children:

John” Graves.

Thomas Graves Jr.

Verlinda Graves.

Ann Graves.

Kathryne Graves Roper”. Born, circa 1622 (?), in Ireland. Died,
before 1668 (2), in Calvert Co., MD. She married, first, Capt.
William Roper®, ‘before 1637 (2), in VA. She married”, second,
Thomas Sprigg <Sprigge> Sr.®, circa 1651 (2), in VA.

She may have had one or more children by her first
marriage to Capt. Roper, including a son William.

She had died by July 4, 1668 when her second husband
remarried (Testamentary Proceedings, Liber 3, f. 12, Hall of
Records, Annapolis). She had married Capt. William Roper by
Aug. 1, 1637 when he claimed 100 acres of land for transporting
his wife and a servant, William Sterlinge. (Ames, op. cit., p.
81).

2
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Jan. 20, 1650/1 Daniel Baker ordered to make payment unto
Mrs. Kathryne Roper ye Relict of Capt. Wm. Roper, dec’d, 1,600
pounds tobacco and cask due her dec’d husband (Northampton Co.
Deeds,Wills #3 1645-51 p.236a).

Mar. 1, 1650/1 Kathryne (Graves) Roper made a deed of




